

## § 39.91

approval was not obtained in accordance with paragraph (c)(1)(ii) of this section;

(10) Any other information, such as a warning statement, contained on the permanent identification plaque; and

(11) State and Federal agencies receiving copy of this report.

[52 FR 8234, Mar. 17, 1987, as amended at 56 FR 64980, Dec. 13, 1991; 58 FR 67660, Dec. 22, 1993; 65 FR 20345, Apr. 17, 2000; 68 FR 58806, Oct. 10, 2003]

## Subpart F—Exemptions

### § 39.91 Applications for exemptions.

The Commission may, upon application of any interested person or upon its own initiative, grant such exemptions from the requirements of the regulations in this part as it determines are authorized by law and will not endanger life or property or the common defense and security and are otherwise in the public interest.

## Subpart G—Enforcement

### § 39.101 Violations.

(a) The Commission may obtain an injunction or other court order to prevent a violation of the provisions of—

(1) The Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended;

(2) Title II of the Energy Reorganization Act of 1974, as amended; or

(3) A regulation or order issued pursuant to those Acts.

(b) The Commission may obtain a court order for the payment of a civil penalty imposed under section 234 of the Atomic Energy Act:

(1) For violations of—

(i) Sections 53, 57, 62, 63, 81, 82, 101, 103, 104, 107, or 109 of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended;

(ii) Section 206 of the Energy Reorganization Act;

(iii) Any rule, regulation, or order issued pursuant to the sections specified in paragraph (b)(1)(i) of this section;

(iv) Any term, condition, or limitation of any license issued under the sections specified in paragraph (b)(1)(i) of this section.

(2) For any violation for which a license may be revoked under section 186

## 10 CFR Ch. I (1–1–13 Edition)

of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended.

[57 FR 55074, Nov. 24, 1992]

### § 39.103 Criminal penalties.

(a) Section 223 of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended, provides for criminal sanctions for willful violation of, attempted violation of, or conspiracy to violate, any regulation issued under sections 161b, 161i, or 161o of the Act. For purposes of section 223, all the regulations in part 39 are issued under one or more of sections 161b, 161i, or 161o, except for the sections listed in paragraph (b) of this section.

(b) The regulations in part 39 that are not issued under sections 161b, 161i, or 161o for the purposes of section 223 are as follows: §§ 39.1, 39.2, 39.5, 39.8, 39.13, 39.91, 39.101, and 39.103.

[57 FR 55074, Nov. 24, 1992]

## PART 40—DOMESTIC LICENSING OF SOURCE MATERIAL

### GENERAL PROVISIONS

Sec.

40.1 Purpose.

40.2 Scope.

40.2a Coverage of inactive tailings sites.

40.3 License requirements.

40.4 Definitions.

40.5 Communications.

40.6 Interpretations.

40.7 Employee protection.

40.8 Information collection requirements: OMB approval.

40.9 Completeness and accuracy of information.

40.10 Deliberate misconduct.

### EXEMPTIONS

40.11 Persons using source material under certain Department of Energy and Nuclear Regulatory Commission contracts.

40.12 Carriers.

40.13 Unimportant quantities of source material.

40.14 Specific exemptions.

### GENERAL LICENSES

40.20 Types of licenses.

40.21 General license to receive title to source or byproduct material.

40.22 Small quantities of source material.

40.23 General license for carriers of transient shipments of natural uranium other than in the form of ore or ore residue.

40.24 [Reserved]